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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and City Council
Herriman City
Herriman, UT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of {he governmental activities, lhe business-type
activities, each major fund, and Lhe apgregate remaining fund information of Herriman City, as of and for
the year ended Junc 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles gencrally accepled in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation ol financial statements that are frec from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmens Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perforin the audit to
oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements are free from material missintement,

An audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence aboul the amounts and disclosures in
the [inancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the {inancial slatements, whether due to fiaud or error.
[n making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
intemal control. Accordingly, we cxpress no such opinion. An audit alse includes evaluating the
ppropriateness ol accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statcments,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements refecred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activitics, the business-type activitics, cach major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund informulion of Herriman City, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash {lows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles getierally aceepted in the United States of America.
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Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetury comparison information on pages 3-9 , 3941, and 45-53 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries ol management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information {or consistency with management’s responses to our inquirics, the basic
(inancial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic (inancial statcnents.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information hecause the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Owr audil was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statcments that collectively
comprise the Herviman City's basic financial statements, The combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statemenls are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements,

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements ave the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly 1o the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applicd in
the andit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
veconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial stalements or to the basic financial statements themsclves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing slandards generally aceepted in the United States of America. Tn our opinion,
the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the basic financial statements as a wholc.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issucd our report dated December 12,
2013, on our consideralion of the Herriman City's internal control over financial reporting and on our testy
of its compliance with cerlain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is o deseribe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over [inancial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral pact of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Herriman City's internal control vver
financial reporting and compliance.

GILBERT & STEWART, CPA, PC
Gilbert & Stewart

Provo, Utah 84601
December 12, 2013



HERRIMAN CITY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Herriman City’'s management presents to the readers of its financial statements this narrative
information. It contains an overview and analysis of the financial position and results of operations as
of and for the twelve months ended June 30, 2013. As management of the City, we encourage
readers to consider information contained in this discussion.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The net position of Herriman City exceeded its liabilities at the end of the current fiscal year by
$215,069,516 (net position). Of this amount, $24,767,129 (unrestricted) is available to meet ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors. Net position increased by $14,209,074 from the current year and
the decrease of $889,140 prior period adjustment

The City's governmental activities reported a combined ending fund balance of $167,146,767. Of the
combined total fund balance, $18,366,571 is available for spending at the discretion of the City
(unreserved and undesignated fund balance).

The unreserved and unassigned fund balance of the general fund at June 30, 2013, totaled

$1,579,488 and is 16% of the general fund total revenues for the year. Total debt for Herriman City is
approximately $46,156,704.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to Herriman City’s basic financial statements:
(1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains information in addition to the basic financial statements that will
help the reader gain a more in-depth understanding of the City.

Government-wide Financial Statements give readers a broad overview of the entire City's financial
position, and changes in financial position, similar to consolidated financial statements in a private
sector business. These statements consist of the statement of net position and the statement of
activities,

The statement of net position shows Herriman City's entire assets and liabilities with the difference
shown as net position. Increases or decreases over time in net position give an indicator as to
whether the financial condition of Herriman is improving or declining.

The statement of activities shows the changes to net position that occurred during the most recent
fiscal year. These changes are recorded on an accrual basis when the underlying event that causes
the change occurs, regardless of when the cash transaction takes place.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish between activities that are largely
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues and those whose operations are entirely or
largely financed by user charges and fees. The governmental activities for Herriman City include
general government, administration, facilities, information technology, storm drain, public safety,
community development, streets, cemetery, and other departments. The business-type activities are
the water utility.

The government-wide financial statements include Herriman City itself and the Municipal Building
Authority which is a legally separate entity from the City, but for all practical purposes functions as a
part of the City and is therefore blended as an integral part of the primary government. The
government-wide financial statements are found immediately following this discussion and analysis.



Fund Financial Statements are a set of closely related accounts that are used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or purposes. Herriman City, like
other state and local Governments, uses fund accounting to demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All of the City's funds can be categorized into one of two categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds. Governmental funds account for essentially the same
activities as the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, but with a
narrower focus. Governmental funds concentrate on near-term inflows and outflows of financial
resources and the balances of spendable resources available to the government at the end of the
fiscal year. This information can be useful in evaluating the government's short-term financing
requirements.

Comparing similar information presented in the government-wide statements for the governmental
activities with that presented in governmental funds statements can provide useful information
because of the different focus of the two approaches. With the long-term focus of the government-
wide statements, a reader may be able to better understand the long-term effects of the near term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance show reconciliation between the
governmental funds statements to the governmental activities in the government-wide statements to
aid in the comparison.

Herriman City uses two major government funds. Of this number, information is shown separately for
the general fund, and the towne center special revenue fund, both of which are deemed major funds.
Information from the other funds is presented in a single combined column. Individual presentations
for these non-major funds are contained in individual information shown after the notes to the
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. The City adopts an annual appropriated budget
for all its governmental funds. Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided to demonstrate
compliance with these budgets

The enterprise fund consists of the water operations of the City, which is a major fund of Herriman
City. The enterprise fund reports the same functions as the business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. Proprietary funds present the same information as in the
government-wide statements, except in more detail.

Notes to the Financial Statements contain additional information important to a complete
understanding of the information contained in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
Notes to the financial statements are located after the statements for major funds as listed in the table
of contents.

OTHER INFORMATION

The combining statements referred to earlier for non-major governmental funds are contained in this
report immediately following the notes to the financial statements and required supplementary
information as listed in the table of contents.



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Herriman City Statement of Net Position

Govermmmental Business-Type
Aotlvitles Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2013 2013 2012

Current assels $  B,153,403 $ 6215576 $ 10,029977 $ 5,635,508 $ 16,183,380 $ 11,861,004
Non-currenl assels 589,228 1,491,159 452,275 476,460 1,041,503 1,967,619
Capilal assels 170,947,288 161,601,326 61,300,934 66,332,321 232,248,222 217,933,647
Other assels 15,656,274 16,312,818 - 432,596 15,656,274 16,745,414

Tolal assets 195,346,193 185,620,879 71,783,186 62,876,885 267,129,379 248,497,764
Curren liabilities 3,841,526 2,153,514 1,905,008 1,573,850 5,746,532 3,727,364
Non-currenl liabilities 23,911,317 24,843,594 21,955,431 18,177,224 45,866,748 43,020,618

Total liabililies 27,752,843 26,997,108 23,860,437 19,751,074 51,613,280 46,748,182
Defered inflows of Resources

Defered properly taxes 446,583 - - 446,583 =
Net position

Investment in capital assets,

nel of relaled debt 147,361,038 136,454,715 38,843,710 37,539,983 186,204,748 173,994,698
Restricted 1,419,158 3717412 2,678,481 1,955,374 4,097,639 5,672,786
Unrestricled 18,366,571 18,451 644 6,400,558 3,630,454 24,767,129 22,082,098
Total net position 167,146,767 158,623,771 47,922,749 43,125,811 215,069,516 201,749,582

Tolal liabilities and

net posilion $ 195,346,193 $ 185,620,879 $ 71,783,186 $ 62,876,885 $ 267,129,379 $ 248,497,764

By far, the largest component of Herriman City's net
position is its investment in capital assets. The 86%
of total net position represents the City's investment
in land and land improvements, buildings, machinery
and equipment, roads, street lights, and bridges,
less any related outstanding debt that was used to
acquire these assets. Herriman City uses these
capital assets to provide services to citizens who
live, work, pass through, or benefit in other ways
from the City. By their nature, these assets are not
available for future spending. Further, even though
these capital assets are reported net of any related
debt, resources needed to repay the debt must
come from other sources, as the assets themselves
cannot be used to satisfy the related obligations.

Investment in Capltal Assets
Represents B6% of Total Net Position

12% 8 Investment in
capital assets
2%
# Restricted

O Unrestricted

86%

An additional part of net position (2%) are assets that are subject to external restrictions on how they
may be expended. The remaining 12% of net position can be used to meet the City's ongoing

obligations to its creditors and to citizens.



Herriman City's Changes in Net Posltion

Governmental Activitles Business Type Actlvities
2013 2012 2013 2012
REVENUES
Charges for services $ 7,382,206 $ 6,548,590 $ 5,733,022 $ 4,978,695
Operating grants and contributions 810,853 925,011 - -
Capital grants and contributions 14,353,680 4,809,693 6,612,997 2,819,266
General Revenues
Property taxes, levied for
general purposes 581,374 490,937 - -
Franchise taxes 1,296,438 1,154,222 - -
Sales taxes 2,384,822 2,219,538 - -
Gain from sale of assets - 167,655 - -
Other revenues 40,495 6,172 - -
Investment earnings 48,039 38,071 43,642 28,905
Total revenues 26,897,907 16,359,889 12,389,661 7,826,866
EXPENSES
General government 4,895,366 4,580,884 - -
Facilities 150,454 120,424 - -
{nformation technology 808,804 504,183 . -
Highway and streets 5,386,808 4,656,810 -
Storm drain 171,094 1,063,641 - -
Cemetery 48,347 37,805 - -
Parks 295,457 2,072,255 - -
Public safety 2,150,700 1,469,300 - -
Nondepartmental 170,438 162,238 - -
Community development 905,657 862,776 - -
Community affairs 621,757 508,912 - -
Street lights 375,978 326,521 - -
Street signs 76,762 67,719 - -
Engineering 681,740 567,543 - -
Interest on long-term debt 1,179,005 450,903 - -
Water - - 7,160,127 6,509,245
Total expenses 17,918,367 17,451,914 7,160,127 6,509,245
OTHER SOURCES
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other sources - - - -
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 8,979,540 (1,092,025) 5,229,534 1,317,621
Net position, July t 158,623,771 159,715,796 43,125,811 41,808,190
Prior period adjustment (456,544) - (432,596) -
Net position, June 30 $ 167,146,767 $ 158,623,771 $ 47,922,749 $ 43,125,811




GOVERNMENTAL AND BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Governmental activities' net position increased by $8,979,540 for the year ended June 30, 2013,
The major reason for the decrease is the lower contributions from developers for subdivisions and
impact fees for new homes. The City also collected various other taxes and revenues above the
amount needed for governmental activities.

Government Actlvities Revenues and Expenses

B Revenues
B BExpenses

15,000,000

i

10,000,000

Dollars

5,000,000

0

Business-type activities contributed an
amount of $5,229 534, The most significant
reason for this increase in business-type
activities is a capital contribution from
developers.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF HERRIMAN
CITY'S FUNDS

Herriman City's governmental funds provide
information on the short-term resource
inflows and outflows, and account balances
at the end of the fiscal year. The total fund
balance is a measure of total available
resources. The unreserved portion of this
total fund balance is a measure of the
available spendable resources at June 30,
2013.

For the period ended June 30, 2013, the
City's governmental funds reported
combined net position in the amount of
$4,499,971 with a decrease of $676,830
compared with the prior fiscal year. Of the
total balance at year-end, $1,579,488 is
unassigned. Of the remaining $2,920,483 of
combined net position, $2,088,0562 s
reserved for servicing the City's debt, with
the remaining $832,431 being reserved for
capital projects of the City.

Business-type Activities - Expenses and
Charges for Services

15,000,000

10,000,000 +
B Expenses
||
5,000,000 4 SHevenls
y
Water
Governmental Revenuss
Charges for Taxes
Services 15.85%
27.45%
Operating
grants
3.01%
Other
0.15%
Capital
Grants & nterest
Contribution 0.18%

S




The general fund is the main operating fund for Herriman City. At June 30, 2013, the general fund's
unassigned fund balance was $1,579,488. The total fund balance of the general fund for Herriman
City increased by $180,520. A useful measure of liquidity is to compare the unreserved fund balance
and the total fund balance to expenditures (including operating transfers out) for the year.

The special revenue funds account for impact fees which are restricted for special projects. The
special revenue towne center decreased by $619,092

The City's proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of the City's major proprietary fund
totaled $6,400,558. Discussions about the finances of this fund are addressed in the City’s business-
type activities.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Differences between the original and final amended budgets for the general fund amounted to a total
increase in expenses of $909,352. Most of the increase was a result of increase from capital projects
and services. The towne center special revenue fund increased expenditure loan payments.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Herriman City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities has a
combined total of $232,248,222 (net of $59,499,066 accumulated depreciation) at June 30, 2013.
Types of assets included in this category are land, buildings and related improvements, vehicles,
machinery and equipment, roads (including curb and gutter), street lights, traffic signals, water and
waste water distribution and collection systems, and construction in progress of $4,015,403. The
City's investment in net capital assets equals nearly 87% of total assets. Governmental activities net
capital assets to governmental activities assets equaled 74% while the business-type activities
percentage was 26%.

Major capital asset activities that occurred during the past fiscal year include:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
2013 2012 2013 2012
Land $ 60,705,200 § 57,738,400 $ 1,897,790 $ 1,457,212
Easements 6,224,064 6,172,564 - 1,457,212
Infrastructure 927,113 927,113 - -
Buildings 6,238,620 6,238,620 58,400 58,400
Water rights - 8,855,215 7,799,133
Improvements, other than buildings 136,308,977 123,915,162 60,256,282 55,633,206
Vehicles 2,643,301 2,571,080 375,317 349,985
Office fumilure and equipment 2,588,191 2,495,676 653,415 653,415
Construction in progress 2,915,182 554,270 1,100,221 229,713
Accumulated depreciation (47,603,360} (39,011,559) (11,895,706) (9,848,743)
Net book value $ 170,947,288 $ 161,601,326 $ 61,300,934 $ 57,789,533

At June 30, 2013, Herriman City's total debt amounted to $46,156,704. Of this amount $23,586,250
was governmental activities and $22,570,454 was incurred by the City's business-type activities. All
of the City's debt is known as revenue bonds and special assessments and is secured by specific
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revenue sources (i.e. property taxes, and water and sewer revenues). The City's installment
obligation was paid in full during 2013.

Additional information on Herriman City's capital assets and debt can be found in Note 6 in the Notes
to the City's Basic Financial Statements.

Herriman City's Outstanding Debt
General Obllgation and Revenus

BusIness-Type

Governmental Activitles Activitles Totals

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Revenue bonds $ 7,450,000 $ 7650000 § 21,757,000 § 17979,000 § 29,207,000 § 25,629,000
Special assessment bonds 15,950,000 17,625,000 - - 15,950,000 17,625,000
Bond discount or premium (207,773) (219,871) 176,589 182,291 (31,184) (37,580)
Installment obligation 300,000 - 603,738 - 903,738 -
Capilal leases 94,023 91,481 33,127 27,309 127,150 118,790
Total $ 23586250 § 25146610 $ 22670454 $ 18,188,600 § 46,156,704  $ 43,335,210

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

As of July 2013, the state unemployment rate was 5.2%, up from 1.5% the previous year. This is
consistent with the nationwide increase in unemployment rates as the economy continues to fall.
Currently, Herriman City is experiencing a similar economic slowdown consistent with the rest of the
nation.

In the previous years the City experienced rapid growth with several subdivisions that would bring in

more property taxes in future years. The rates and fees for most services remained constant for the
fiscal year ended 2013 compared with the fiscal year just ended

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to give its readers a general overview of Herriman City’s finances.
Questions regarding any information contained in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to Herriman City, 13011 South Pioneer Street, Herriman, Utah
84096.



HERRIMAN CITY

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2013

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted
Unrestricted
Receivables
Property, and franchise and excise taxes
Special assessments receivable
Social security receivable
Accounts, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $0
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Property and equipment, net
Land and water rights
Easements
Infrastructure
Buildings
Improvements, other than buildings
Vehicles
Office furniture and equipment
Construction in progress
Net property and equipment

Long term special assessments
Total other noncurrent assets
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Primary Government

Governmental Buslness-type
Activities Activities Total
$ 2,636,428 $ 6,619,361 $ 9,255,789
2,911,541 2,583,485 5,495,026
1,164,582 - 1,164,582
200,000 - 200,000
1,195,546 - 1,195,546
29,914 707,465 737,379
15,392 - 15,392
- 119,666 119,666
8,153,403 10,029,977 18,183,380
589,228 452,275 1,041,503
60,705,200 10,753,004 71,458,204
6,224,064 - 6,224,064
591,276 - 591,276
4,628,771 58,400 4,587,171
95,137,085 48,360,579 143,497,664
165,736 375,314 541,050 -~
679,974 653,416 1,333,390
2,915,182 1,100,221 4,015,403
170,947,288 61,300,934 232,248,222 -
15,656,274 - 15,656,274
15,656,274 - 15,656,274
187,192,790 61,753,209 248,945,999
$195,346,193 $ 71,783,186 $267,129,379




HERRIMAN CITY

Statement of Net Position, Continued
June 30, 2013

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 2,395,700 $ 855,755 $ 3,251,455
Current portion of long-term debt
payable from restricted assets 897,903 652,000 1,549,903
Current portion of capital leases 62,071 16,055 78,126
Current portion purchase agreement - - -
Accrued liabilities 206,664 11,168 217,832
Accrued interest, payable from restricted
assets 279,188 370,028 649,216
Total current liabilities 3,841,526 1,905,006 5,746,532
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term compensation liability 291,326 53,032 344,358
Bonds payable from restricted sources 22,294,324 21,281,589 43,575,913
Purchase agreement 300,000 603,738 903,738
Capital leases 31,952 17,072 49,024
Construction bonds 993,715 - 993,715
Total noncurrent liabilities 23,911,317 21,955,431 45,866,748
Total liabilities 27,752,843 23,860,437 51,613,280
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred property taxes 446,583 - 446,583
Total deferred inflows of resources 446,583 - 446,583
NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets,
net of related debt 147,361,038 38,843,710 186,204,748
Restricted for:
Capital projects 742,158 2,226,207 2,968,365
Debt service 589,227 452,274 1,041,501
Other restricted 87,773 87,773
Unrestricted 18,366,571 6,400,558 / 24,767,129
Total net position 167,146,767 47,922 749 215,069,516

Total liabilities and net position $ 195,346,193 $ 71,783,186 $ 267,129,379




HERRIMAN CITY

Statement of Actlvities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Program Revenues

Net (Expense)

Revenua and Changes in Net Position

Primary Governmeni

Operating Capltal Buslness-
Charges for Grants and Qrants and Government Type
Funclions and rams Expensee Services Contributions Cantributions Actlvities Activitles Total
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmenl aclivities
General government $ 4,895,366 $ 3,504,800 $ 13,008 5 - £ (1,287,470} 3 §  (1,287470)
Facllitles 160,454 . - (150,454) {150,454}
Information technology 808,804 - - - (808,804) (808,804)
Highway and slreels 5,306,808 802,154 783,497 12,928,174 9,318,017 9,318,017
Storm drain 171,084 314,829 - 1,424,506 1,568,241 1,568,241
Cemelery 48,347 89,480 - - 41,143 41,143
Public safety 295,457 251,321 14,260 - {20,876} (29,876)
Parks 2,150,700 1,380,619 - (769,881} (769,081)
Non-deparimenlal 170,438 - - {170,438} (170,438)
Community development 905,657 758,793 . . (146,884) (146,864)
Communlty affairs 621,757 - - (621,757) (621,757)
Street lights 375,878 - (375,878} (375,978)
Straet signs 78,762 - - {76,762) (76,762)
Engineering 681,740 . . (681,740) . (681,740}
Interest on long-term debl 1,179,005 - - . {1,178,005) - (1,179,005}
Tatal government actlvilies 17,816,387 7,382,208 810,853 14,353,680 4,628,372 - 4,628,372
Business-type aclivilies
Waler 7,160,127 5,733,022 - 6,612,997 - 5,185,092 5,185,802
Total business-type activilles 7,160,127 5,733,022 - 6,612,997 - 5,165,892 5,185,092
Total primary government $ 25078,494 $ 13115228 $ 810,853 $ 20,966,677 4,828,372 5,185,802 9,814,264
General revenues
Taxes
Property \axes, lsvled for general purposes 581,374 561,374
Franchise taxes 1,266,438 1,296,438
Sales taxes 2,384,822 2,384,822
Gain or loss on sale of assets - .
Other revenues 40,495 - 40,495
Invesiment earnings 48,038 43,842 91,601
Transfers - - -
Total gatecal tevanuos, spacial itains,
and translers 4,351,168 43,642 4,394,610
Changes in net position 8,979,540 5,229,534 14,209,074
Net positlon, July 1, 2012 158,623,771 43,125,811 201,749,582
Prior period adjusiment (456,544) {432,596} (889,140)
Net posllion, June 30, 2013 $ 167,146,767  §  47,922748 § 215009516




HERRIMAN CITY

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2013

ASSETS

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables
Property, franchise, and excise tax
Other receivables, less allowance for

doubtful loans of $0

Special assessments

Prepaid expenses

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabllities
Construction bonds

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred property taxes
Deferred assessments
Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Unassigned
Assigned capital improvements
Restricted for:
Bond funds
Other purposes
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Speclat Other Total
Revenue Governmental Governmental

General Towne Center Funds Funds
$ 2,855,346/ $ 2,500 $ 53,695 $ 2911541
1,164,582 - - 1,164,582
1,225,461 - . 1,225,461
- 15,856,274 - 15,856,274
15,392 - - 15,392
87,??3/ 1,748,864 1,389,019 3,225,656
$ 5,348,554 $ 17,607,638 $ 1,442,714 $ 24,398,906
$ 2,034,331/ $ 2,500 $ 358,868 $ 2,395,699
206,664 - . 206,664
993,715/ - - 993,715
3,234,710 2,500 358,868 3,596,078
446,583 - 446,583
-/ 15,856,274 15,856,274
446,583 15,856,274 - 16,302,857
1,579,488 / - - 1,679,488
/ 1,746,364 341,688 2,088,052
87,773 2,500 742,158 832,431
1,667,261 1,748,864 1,083,846 4,499,971
$ 5,348,554 $ 17,607,638 $ 1,442,714 $ 24,398,906
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HERRIMAN CITY

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds to the

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2013

Total Fund Balance

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in govemmental activities are not financial
resources and {herefore are not reported in the funds. Those
assets consist of:

Land

Infrastructure

Easements

Buildings

Improvements, other than buildings

Equipment

Construction in progress

Vehicles

Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets

Special assessment revenue is recognized when the levy is made and
when measurable and available in the government funds.

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental
aclivities are not due and payable in the current period, and
accordingly, are not reported as fund liabilities. Interest on
long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but
rather as an expenditure when due. All liabilities, both
current and long-lerm, are reported in the statements of net
position.

Accrued liabilities:
Obligation for compensation liabilities due after one year
Accrued Interest
Bonds payable
Capital leases
Total liabilities

Total net position of governmental activities
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$ 60,705,200
927,113
6,224,064
6,238,620
138,311,063
2,587,192
2,915,182
2,643,301

(47,604,447)

(291,326)
(279,188)
(23,492,227)

(94,025)

$ 4,499,971

170,947,288

15,856,274

(24,156,766)

S 167,146,767



HERRIMAN CITY

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Special Other
Revenue Govermmmental
General Town Center Funds Totals
REVENUES
General property taxes $ 497,403 $ 83,971 $ - $ 561,374
Sales, use, and excise laxes 2,637,415 - - 2,637,415
Franchise taxes 1,043,846 - - 4,043,846
Licenses 49,737 - - 49,737
Permits 3,446,303 - - 3,446,303
Interest 29,774 13,852 3,926 47,552
Intergovernmental 797,757 - - 797,757
Fines 157,179 - - 157,179
Impact fees = 83,841 1,928,265 2,011,908
Charges for services 776,275 536,409 257,638 1,570,322
Contributions 861 1,375,157 - 1,375,818
Grants 88,454 - 88,454
Sale of assets - - - -
Miscellaneous 59,380 - 1,538,780 1,596,160
Total revenues 9,584,184 2,083,030 3,726,609 15,403,823
EXPENDITURES
Current
Administration 1,602,331 - - 1,502,331
Facilities 246,683 - - 246,683
Informalion technology 734,240 - - 734,240
Highway and streets 755,823 - - 755,823
Street lights 347,845 - - 347,845
Storm drain mainienance 165,693 - - 165,693
Street signs 76,762 - - 76,762
Cemetery 32,131 - - 32,131
Public safely 299,738 - 66,420 366,158
Parks and recreations 1,329,239 - - 1,328,239
Community affairs 832,497 - - 832,497
Engineering 716,330 - - 716,330
Flest management 156,799 - - 158,799
Human resources 243,350 - - 243,350
Community development 752,936 - - 752,936
Capital oullay B 383,754 4,431,935 4,815,689
Principal 200,000 1,675,000 2 1,875,000
Interest and other fiscal charges 215,317 729,211 231,953 1,176,481
Tolal expenditures 8,609,714 2,787,965 4,730,308 16,127,987
Revenues over (under) expsnditures 974,470 (694,935) (1,003,699) {724,164)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Lease proceads 47,334 - - 47,334
Operating transfers in - 75,843 028,441 904,284
Operating transfers out (841,284) - (63,000) (904,284)
Total other financing sources (uses) (793,950) 75,843 765,441 47,334
Revenue and other sources over
{under) expenditures and other
uses 180,520 {619,092) (238,258) {676,830)
FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2012 1,486,741 2,367,956 1,322,104 5,176,801
FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2013 $ 1,667,261 / $ 1,748,864 / 3 1,083,846 $ 4,498,971




HERRIMAN CITY

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ (676,830)

The change in net position reported for governmental activities
in the statement of activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital
outlay ($4,876,778) is more than depreciation expense
($8,591,801). (3,715,023)

Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the govemmental
funds but reduces the liability in the statement of net position. 1,839,679

Lease proceeds are recorded as revenue in the funds statement and
as leases payable in the govemment wide statements (47.334)

Some expenses reported in {he statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources, and therefore,
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
This adjustment is as foltows:

Accrued leave $ 9,494
Accrued interest 12,097
21,591
Contributions from the developer from assets contributed to the City
are financial resources and are not reported as revenues in the funds. 12,816,901
Special assessments are recognized when levied and are recorded
in the fund statement when measurable and available. (1,259.444)
Change in net position of governmenta! activities $ 8,979,540
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HERRIMAN CITY

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2013

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricled

Unrestricted
Receivables

Accounts, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $0
Inventory

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Properly and equipment, at cost
Land and water rights
Work in process
Buildings
Vehicles
Improvements, other than buildings
Office fumilure and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Net property and equipment

Total assets

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Current portion of long-term debt payable from restricted assels
Current portion of capital leases
Accrued liabllities
Accrued interest
Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term compensalion liability
Capital leases
Purchase agresment
Bonds payable from restricted assets

Total noncurrenl liabilities

Total liabilities
NET POSITION

Investment in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Capital projecls
Debt service
Unrestricted
Total net position

Total liabilities and nel position

Business-type
Activities
Water/Sewer

$ 6,619,361
2,583,485-

707,465
119,666
10,029,977

452,275

10,753,004
1,100,221
58,400
375,314
60,256,283
653,416

(11,895,704)
61,300,934

71,783,186

-$——-‘—‘-

$ 855,755
652,000

16,055

11,168

370,028
1,905,006

53,032
17,072
603,738
21,281,589
21,955,431

23,860,437

38,843,710

2,226,207
452,274
6,400,558
47,922,749

S 71783186



HERRIMAN CITY

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

OPERATING REVENUE
Sales and charges for services
Total operating revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services
Supplies
Utilities
Depreciation and amortization
Total expenses

Operating income

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income
Impact fees
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Grants and other contributions
Total capital contributions

Transfers
Transfers in

Increase in net position

NET POSITION, JULY 1, 2012
Prior period adjustment

NET POSITION, JUNE 30, 2013
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Buslness-type
Activities

Water/Sewer

$ 5,733,022

5,733,022

839,176
3,076,517
351,395
2,046,963
6,314,051

(581,029)

43,642
2,176,413
(846,076)
1,373,979

4,436,584
4,436,584

5,229,534
43,125,811
(432,596)

$ 47,922,749



HERRIMAN CITY

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Impact fees
Purchase of capital assets
Principal paid on capital leases
Bond payments
Bond proceeds
Interest paid on bonds and leases
Net cash from capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment earnings
Net cash provided from investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1, 2012

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Increase (decrease) due to changes in:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities affecting operating activities
Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities
The proprietary fund had assets contributed to the City of $4,436,584

The City financed vehicles with capital leases of $25,332
The City removed bond costs previously amortized at $432,596
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$ 5,625,893
(3,183,083)

(834,250)
1,608,580

2,176,413
(2,553 ,660)
(19,514)
(842,701)
4,415,000

(801,270)
2,574,268

43,642
43,642
4,226,490
5,428,631

_8 0655121
$ (581,029)

2,046,963

(107,130)
(36,664)
281,514

(1,004)
5,930

_$ 1608580



HERRIMAN CITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

History and Organization

Herriman City was incorporated May 17, 1999. The City operates under a mayor-council form of
government and provides the following services authorized by its charter: facilities, information
technology, public safety, highways and streets, public improvements, parks, recreation, planning
and zoning, water, and general administrative.

Financial Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the reporting entity includes all funds, agencies, and authorities
for which the City holds corporate powers and all component units for which the City is financially
accountable. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in its Statement No. 14,
The Financial Reporting Entity, has established criteria to consider in determining financial
accountability. The criteria are: appointment of a majority of the voting members of an
organization’s governing board, and either (1) the City has the ability to impose its will on the
organization or (2) there is potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or
impose specific financial burdens on, the City.

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these
financial statements represent Herriman City, the primary government, and its component units.
The component units are included in the City's reporting entity because of the significance of their
operational or financial relationship with the City.

The Herriman Municipal Building Authority is a legally separate entity from the City, but is part of
the City, and is blended into the general fund. The sole purpose of the Municipal Building
Authority is to serve the City as a financing agency for debt financed projects. The Herriman City
Council serves as the Board of Directors of the Municipal Building authority.

Basis of Presentation — Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide statements are comprised of the statement of net position and the statement of
activities. They contain information on all of the activities of the primary government and its
components. Most effects of inter-fund activities have been eliminated from these statements.
Governmental activities are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, while
business-type activities receive a significant portion of revenues from fees and charges for
services.

The statement of activities is presented to show the extent that program revenues of a given
activity support direct expenses. Direct expenses are those that can clearly be associated with a
particular activity or program. Program revenues are: (1) charges to customers or others who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from the services or goods provided by a given activity, or (2)
grants or other contributions that are restricted to operations or capital needs of a specific activity.
General revenues are those revenues, like taxes and other items that are not properly reported
as program revenues. Indirect expense allocated between departments is related to depreciation
on assets. The depreciation expense is allocated based on the use of the asset by the
departments.

Separate financial statements are included for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major

individual governmental funds are reported in separate columns in the governmental funds
statements, as are major individual proprietary funds in the proprietary funds statements.
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Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus refers to the types of assets that appear on the statement of net position, and
changes to those same assets that appear on the statement of activities. The flow of financial
resources measurement focus shows current assets and liabilities on the statement of net
position, and changes to net current assets, in the statement of activities. The flow of economic
resources measurement focus shows total position and liabilities on the statement of net position,
and changes to net position, on the statement of activities. Basis of accounting refers to when
revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the
financial statements.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Statements use the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the
accounting period in which they are earned, and expenses are recognized in the period incurred,
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Unbilled fees for proprietary funds are
recorded as receivables at year end. Property taxes are recorded as revenues in the year for
which they are levied. Grants and similar other contributions are recognized as revenue as soon
as the eligibility requirements of the provider have been met.

Herriman City's major enterprise fund is the water fund. The fund collects fresh water from
springs and wells, treats it, and delivers potable water to nearly all residents and businesses
located in the City.

Proprietary funds separate operating and non-operating revenues and expenses. Operating
revenues and expenses normally arise from providing goods and services in connection with the
fund’s normal ongoing operations. The principal sources of operating revenues for the
proprietary funds are fees charged to customers for goods and services. Operating expenses
include the cost of sales and services, administrative overhead expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets. All other revenues or expenses are recorded as non-operating.

The City has elected to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB)
Opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements. Consequently, the City does not apply FASB
pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989.

Governmental Fund Statements use the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis, revenues are
recognized when they become measurable and available. “Measurable” means that amounts can
be reasonably determined within the current period. “Available” means that amounts are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current period. As a practical matter, Herriman City uses 60 days as a cut-off for meeting the
available criterion. Property taxes are considered "measurable” when levied and "available” when
collected and held by the County. Any amounts not available are recorded as deferred revenue.
Franchise taxes are considered "measurable” when collected and held by the utility company,
and are recognized as revenue at that time. Other revenues that are determined to be
susceptible to accrual include grants earned and other intergovernmental revenues, charges for
services, and assessments. Property taxes and assessments are recorded as receivables when
levied or assessed. However, they are reported as deferred revenue until the "available” criterion
has been met. Sales and use taxes collected by the state and remitted to the City within the
“available” time period are recognized as revenue. Revenues collected in advance are deferred
and recognized in the period to which they apply.

Revenues that are determined to not be susceptible to accrual, because they are either not
available soon enough to pay liabilities of the current period (60 days) or are not objectively
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measurable, include licenses, permits, and miscellaneous revenues, Revenue is recognized
when cash is received.

Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, except
for long-term obligations (debt service payments and long term compensated absences) and
related interest which is recognized as expenditures when due. Inventories of supplies are
expended when purchased.

Herriman City has two major governmenta! funds: (1) the general fund, (2) the towne center
special revenue fund. The general fund is the main operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government except for those required to be accounted for in another
fund. The special revenue funds account for impact fee revenue and the construction of projects
financed with impact fees and construction bonds. These constructed or improved capitai assets
are for the benefit of any or all governmental funds. In addition to the listed major governmental
funds, the City also has a total of ten non-major governmental funds: (1) the special revenue
parks (2) the special revenue flood control, (3) the capital improvement fund, (4) the street signs
fund, (5) the special revenue street lights, (6) the special revenue roads, (7) the Mayor Crane
special revenue, and (8) debt service fund, (9) the public safety fund, and (10) the Herriman
Parkway fund.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Budgets are legally required for governmental funds. Annual budgets are prepared and adopted
by the City Council on or before June 15 for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1, in
accordance with Utah State Law. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the
proposed sources of financing for such expenditures. Prior to June 15 a public hearing is
conducted to obtain taxpayer input. Budgets are adopted by ordinance in total for each
department. Expenditures cannot exceed appropriations at the department level, Management
can move budgeted amounts from one line item to another within a department or decrease
appropriations. The City Council can increase appropriations after holding a public hearing.

The governmental funds budget is prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Governmental appropriations lapse at year-end.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

The City complies with GASB Statement No. 31 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools. The statement requires certain investments to be
reported at fair value, and the change in fair value, to be included in revenues or expenses. The
City's policy is to report all investments at value and the change in fair value to be included in
revenues or expenses. The City's investment in the State Treasurer's Pool has a fair value
equivalent to the value of the pool shares. This pool is administered by the State of Utah and is
regulated by the Money Management Council under provisions of the Utah State Money
Management Act. In all statements the City considers all highly liquid investments, (including
restricted position) that mature within ninety days or less when purchased, to be cash
equivalents.

Depreciable Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost for assets where actual
historical cost was not available. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market
value on the date donated, The City has a capitalization threshold of $5,000 for all assets. The
City follows GAAP by capitalizing a portion of its interest costs (net of any interest earned on
related interest bearing investments acquired with proceeds of related tax-exempt borrowings) as
a cost of constructed property and equipment in enterprise funds. Depreciation of fixed assets is
computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:
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Years

Buildings 40
Improvements, other than buildings 10-30
Machinery and equipment, including leased property under capital leases 5-15
Infrastructure in public way, including roads, signals, lights, and bridges 15-30
Water and sewer lines 30
Vehicles 5

Bond Issuance Costs and Amortization
Amortization of bond issue costs and bond discount are computed on the straight-line method
over the life of the related bonds.

Property Taxes

Ad valorem (based on value) property taxes constitute a major source of general fund revenue.
Taxes are levied through the passage of an ordinance in June of each year. The levy is
applicable to only one year. All taxable property is required to be assessed and taxed at a
uniform and equal rate on the basis of its fair market value. The County Assessor is required to
assess all other taxable property and both entities are required to assess the respective types of
property as of January 1, the assessment date. The County is then required to complete the tax
rolls by May 15. By July 21 the County Treasurer is to mail assessed value and tax notices to
property owners. A taxpayer may then petition the County Board of Equalization between August
1 and August 15 for a revision of the assessed value. Approved changes in assessed value are
made by the County Auditor by November 1, and on this same date, the Auditor is to deliver the
completed assessment rolls to the County Treasurer. Tax notices are mailed with a due date of
November 30 with delinquent taxes being subject to a penalty. Unless the delinquent taxes and
penalties are paid before January 15, a lien is attached to the property and the amount of taxes
and penalties bear interest from January 1, until paid. If after five years, delinquent taxes have
not been paid, the County sells the property at a tax sale. Tax collections are remitted to the City
from the County on a monthly basis. With the July 1, 2000, adoption of Statement of
Governmental Accounting Standards (SGAS) No. 33, more fully described betow, Herriman City
changed its accounting for property taxes.

SGAS No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Transactions, defines a
non-exchange transaction as one in which “a government either gives value to another party
without directly receiving equal value in exchange or receives value from another party without
directly giving equal value in exchange.” For property taxes, at January 1 of each year (the
assessment date), Herriman City has the legal right to collect the taxes, and in accordance with
the provisions of the new statement, has now recorded a receivable and a corresponding
deferred revenue for the assessed amount of those property taxes as of January 1, 2013. Since
the government-wide statements use the accrual basis of accounting, the government activities
records both the receivable and the property tax revenue as deferred income of January 1, 2013,
even though most of them will not be received until the following fiscal year.

Inter-fund Transactions

In the normal course of its operations, the City has various transactions between funds.
Transfers are recognized as operating transfers in and out, respectively, by the funds receiving
and providing the transfer.

Long-term Liabilities

Long-term liabilities that will be financed from governmental funds are accounted for in the
governmental activities portion of the government-wide statements, while those of proprietary
funds are accounted for in their respective funds.
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Use of Restricted Funds

The City has funds with various restrictions. When an expense is incurred which meets the
requirements to release the restriction, such restricted funds are first used to satisfy the expense
followed by any unrestricted funds needed to satisfy the expense.

Contributions

Certain proprietary fund types receive contribution for aid in construction from various sources.
With the adoption of GASB No. 33, these contributions that were formerly credited directly to
contributed capital accounts are now reflected as non-operating revenue. With the adoption of
GASB No. 34, amounts that were contributed in prior years, and were shown as contributed
capital, have been reclassified to part of beginning net assets.

Compensated Absences

The City compensates employees for unused vacation and compensation time. Sick pay is not
paid to employees upon termination. Accumulated unpaid amounts are accrued when incurred in
the government wide funds. The proprietary fund includes accrued vacation pay in their financial
statements. '

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for
the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budget integration in the general and capital
projects funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund
balances since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of
the financial statements, and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimated amounts for contributed
assets from sub-developers are considered a significant estimate and are subject to change, and
the change could be material.

Inventories

Inventories of supplies for the proprietary fund consist principally of items used in repairing and
maintaining the water distribution system. Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in first-out
(FIFO) method.

COST SHARING MULTIPLE EMPLOYER DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Herriman City contributes to the Local Governmental Contributory Retirement Systems and the
Local Governmental Noncontributory Division Tier 2, and a noncontributory division Tier 1
Retirement Systems administered by the Utah Retirement Systems. Utah Retirement Systems
provides refunds, retirement benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to
plan members and beneficiaries in accordance with retirement statutes.

The System is established and governed by the respective section of Chapter 49 of the Utah
Code Annotated 1953 as amended. The Utah State Retirement Office Act in Chapter 49 provides
for the administration of the Utah Retirement Systems and Plans under the direction of the Utah
State Retirement Board whose members are appointed by the Governor. The System issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information from the Local Governmental Contributory Retirement Systems. A copy of the report
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may be obtained by writing to the Utah Retirement Systems, 540 East 200 South, Salt Lake City,
Utah, 84102, or by calling 1-800-365-8772.

Funding Policy

In the Local Governmental Noncontributory Retirement System, Herriman City is required to
contribute 13.770% of the annual covered salary. The Local governmental contributory system
employer contribution is 10.330%. The contribution rates are the actuarial determined rates. The
contribution requirements of the Systems are authorized by statute and specified by the Board.

Herriman City's contributions to the Local Governmental Contributory and Noncontributory
Retirements Systems for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were as follows:

2013 2012 2011

Noncontributory employer contributions $ 3,365,894 $ 3,070,644 $ 2,675415
Salary 538,039 415,178 386,939
Employer contributions

Contributory employer contributions

Salary 155,275 71,440 -

Employer contributions 13,292 5,422 -
401(k) Plan

Employee contributions 144,435 108,630 94,686

Employer contributions 175,162 78,438 66,303
457 Plan

Employee contributions 47,954 15,265 13,979

Employer contributions 7.021 10,507 9,031
IRA Employee paid - 300 300

These contributions were equal to the required contributions for each year.
CAPITAL ASSETS

The following schedule summarizes the changes in capital assets for governmental and business
type activities during the year ended June 30, 2013:
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PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Land
Easements
Work in process
Total nondepreciated assets

Depreciated assets
Buildings
Improvements
Equipment
Other Infrastruclure
Vehicles
Total depreciated assets

Less accumulated depreciation

Buildings

Improvementls

Equipment

Other infrastructure

Vehicles

Total accumulaled deprecialion

Net assets depreciated

Total govermmental activities

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Nondepreciated assets
Land
Water rights
Work in process
Total nondepreciated assels

Deprecialed assets
Vehicles
Buildings
Improvemenls
Equipment
Tolal depreciated assets

Less accumulated depreciation
Vehicles
Buildings
Improvements
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Net assets depreciated

Total business-type assets

Total combined assets

g g Addltlons Deletlons Ending
$ 57,738,400 $ 2,966,800 $ $ 60,705,200
6,172,564 51,500 6,224,064
554,270 2,360,912 2,915,182
64,465,234 5,379,212 - 60,844,446
6,238,620 - - 6,238,620
123,915,162 12,393,815 - 136,308,977
2,495,676 92,515 - 2,588,191
927,113 - - 927,113
2,571,080 72,221 - 2,643,301 -
136,147,651 12,558,551 - 148,708,202
(1,510,351) (199,497) - (1,709,848)
(33,101,705) (8,072,271) - (41,173,976)
(1,757,029) (149,105) (1,906,134)
(287,280) (48,547) - (335,837)
(2,355,184) (122,381) - (2,477,565)/
(39,011,559) (8,591,801) - (47,603,360)
97,136,092 3,966,750 - 101,102,842
161,601,326 9,345,962 - 170,947,288
1,457,212 553,807 (113,229) 1,897,790
7,799,133 1,056,082 - 8,855,215
229,713 870,508 - 1,100,221
9,486,058 2,480,397 (113,229) 11,853,226
349,985 25,332 - 375,317
58,400 - - 58,400
55,633,206 4,623,077 - 60,256,283
653,415 - - 653,415
56,695,006 4,648,409 - 61,343,415
(298,089) (18,540) - {316,629)
(10,463) (1,460} . (11,823)
(9,109,707) (1,991,862) - (11,101,569)
{(430,484) (35,101) - (465,585)
(9,848,743) (2,046,963) - (11,895,706)
46,846,263 2,601,446 - 49,447,709
56,332,321 5,081,843 (113,229) 61,300,935
$ 217,933,647 $ 14,427,805 $ (113,229) § 232,248,223 .
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Governmental Business

Types Types Totals
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE
FUNCTION
General government $ 3,079,716 $ - $ 3,079,716
Highway and streets 4,001,725 - 4,001,725
Cemetery 15,286 - 15,286
Engineering - - -
Parks 765,013 - 765,013
Public safety 16,150 - 16,150
Flood control 713,911 - 713,911
Water = 2,046,963 2,046,963
Totals $ 8,591,801 $ 2,046,963 $10,638,764
INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Interfund transfers are outlined as follows:
Funds In Out
General fund $ - $ 841,284
Roads special revenue - 63,000
Towne Center 75,843 -
Street light special revenue 63,000 -
Capital improvements 765,441 -
Total funds $ 904,284 $ 904,284

The purpose of the transfers to the capital improvements was to provide for operation of the fund.
The transfer to the street light fund was for construction projects.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A councilman serves on the board of the South Valley Sewer District. The mayor is on the Salt
Lake Valley law enforcement service board. There are no amounts due to or from this entity at
year end.
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6. LONG TERM DEBT

Bonds payable at June 30, 2013, are comprised of the following individual issues:

Balance Balance Due within

Bonds ble 6/30/2012 Additlons 6/30/2013 One Year
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Sales and franchise tax revenue bonds series
2008. Original issue $7,850,000 with interest
from 2.8% to 5.7%. The bonds are secured by
Sales and franchise taxes and mature in 2044 $ 7,650,000 $ 200,000 S 7,450,000 S 200,000 /
55A bond with interest from 3% to 5% due
in November 2029 secured by property owned
by individuals in the special assessment area 17,625,000 - 1,675,000 15,950,000 710,000 4
Bond discount (219,870} {12,097) (207,773) (12,097)
Total bonds governmental 25,055,130 1,862,903 23,192,227 897,903
BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES
Serles 2003 water revenue bonds orlginal lssue
was $3,600,000 with interest at 1.9%. The
bonds are secured by water revenues and
mature in 2024 2,316,000 174,000 2,142,000 177,000
Taxable water revenue bonds series 2005. Bonds
bear no Interest but are discounted at 3%,
The bonds are less a discount of $55,585 and are
secured by water revenue and mature
in December 2012 73,000 - 73,000
BAN 2012 series due July 2014 with an interest /
rate of 1.5% 4,415,000 . 4,415,000 .
Series 2011 water revenue bonds original issue
was 56,585,000 with interest at 1.9%. The
bonds are secured by water revenue and mature
in 2024 6,330,000 245,000 6,085,000 250,000/
Herriman City water revenue and refunding
bonds series 2007. The bonds bear interest
at 4% and mature In 2033 9,260,000 - 145,000 9,115,000 225,000 /
Premium 182,291 - 5,702 176,589 -

Total business long term debt 18,161,291 4,415,000 642,702 21,933,589 652,000
Total bonds payable S 43,216,421 4,415,000 $ 2,505,605 $ 45,125,816 $ 1,549,903
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIBVITIES, OTHER LIABILITIES
Compensated absences 5 300,820 - H 9,494 5 291,326 5 -
Capital leases 91,481 47,289 44,747 94,023 62,071
Other obligations - 300,000 - 300,000 -
BUSINESS, OTHER LIABILITIES
Compensated absences 47,102 5,930 - 53,032 -
Capital leases 27,309 25,332 19,515 33,126 16,055
Purchase agreement 603,738 - - 603,738 -
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The annual debt requirement to maturity, including principal and interest as of June 30, 2013, for
the business fund is listed in the following table:

Serles 2003A
Year Ending Revenue Bonds
30-Jun Rate Principal Interest

2014 1.86% $ 177,000 $ 39,841
2015 1.86% 181,000 36,549
2016 1.86% 184,000 33,182
2017 1.86% 187,000 29,760
2018 1.86% 191,000 26,282
2019-2022 1.86% 1,009,000 76,837
2023-2027 1.86% 213,000 3,962
Totals $ 2,142,000 $ 246,413

The annual debt requirement to maturity, including principal and interest as of June 30, 2013, for
the governmental funds is listed in the following tables:

Series 2007
W R
Year Ending ater Revenue
30-Jun Principal Interest
2014 $ 225,000 $ 398,275
2015 230,000 389,175
2016 240,000 379,775
2017 250,000 364,974
2018 260,000 354,574
2019-2022 550,000 1,336,700
2023-2027 3,025,000 1,354,276
2028-2032 4,335,000 753,973
Totals $ 9,115,000 $ 5,381,722
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Series 2008
Sales and Franchise Tax bond

Year Ending
30-Jun Principal Interest
2014 $ 200,000 $ 368,196
2015 225,000 360,452
2016 225,000 356,458
2017 240,000 342,358
2018 250,000 331,633
2019-2023 1,460,000 141,951
42023-2028 1,855,000 1,077,331
2029-2033 2,425,000 514,847
2034-2038 570,000 16,245
Totals $ 7,450,000 $ 3509471
Series 2010
SSA Bond
Year Ending
30-Jun Principal Interest
2014 $ 710,000 $ 714,998
2015 730,000 693,032
2016 755,000 668,505
2017 780,000 640,667
2018 810,000 609,437
2019-2023 4,585,000 2,487,638
2024-2028 4,805,000 1,267,239
2029-2033 2,775,000 140,375
Totals $ 15,950,000 $ 7,221,891
Series 2011
Water Revenue Bonds
Year Ending
30-Jun Principal Interest
2014 $ 250,000 $ 116,757
2015 255,000 113,007
2016 270,000 107,907
2017 275,000 103,857
2018 99,732
2019-2023 1,510,000 430411
2024-2028 3,525,000 156,203
2029-2033 - -
Totals $ 6,085,000 $ 1,127,874
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Water Revenue Bonds

Year Ending
30-Jun Principal Interest
2014 $ ~ $ 33,113
2015 4,415,000 33,113
Totals $ 4,415,000 3 66,226

7. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. In addition,
investments are separately held by several of the City’s funds. Cash and investments as of June
30, 2013, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

Statement of net position
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15,792,318

Cash investments and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2013, consist of the following:

Deposits with financial institutions $ 822,028
Petty cash 350
Investments, state treasurer 14,969,940
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 15,792,318

Investments Authorized by the Utah Government Code

The City follows the requirements of the Utah Money Management Act in handling its depository
and temporary investment transactions. This law requires the depositing of City funds ina
“‘qualified depository”. The Act defines a "qualified depository” as any financial institution in
whose deposits are insured by an agency of the Federal Government and which has been
certified by the Commissioner of Financial Institutions as meeting the requirements of the Act and
adhering to the rules of the Utah Money Management Council.

The Money Management Act also defines the types of securities allowed as appropriate
temporary investments for the City and the conditions for making investments and investment
transactions. Investment transactions are to be conducted through qualified depositories or
primary reporting dealers.

Certain assets are restricted by provisions of the revenue bond resolutions. The resolutions also
describe how these restricted assets may be deposited and invested. Restricted cash may only
be deposited in state or national banks meeting certain minimum net worth requirements, or
invested in securities representing direct obligations of, or obligations guaranteed by, the United
States government, agencies of the United States government, any state within the territorial
United States of America, or repurchase agreements or interest bearing time deposits with state
or national banks meeting certain minimum net worth requirements.

The PTIF is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. The PTIF is authorized and
regulated by the Money Management Act. The act established the Money Management Council
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which oversees the activities of the State Treasurer and the PTIF, and details the type of
authorized investments it makes. The PTIF is not rated.

Deposits in the PITF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State of Utah and
participants share proportionally in any realized gains or losses on investments.

As of June 30, 2013, the City had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Maturitles (In Years)

More Than 1, More
Fair Less Less Than 10 Than 10
Investment Type Value Than 1 Year Years Years
State of Utah Public Treasurer
investment fund $ 14,969,940 $ 14,969,940 $ - $
Total investments $ 14,969,940 $ 14,969,940 $ . $

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that occurs when changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. The City policy for managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from
increasing interest rates is to comply with the State’'s Money Management Act. In accordance
with that act, the remaining term to maturity of the investments above do not exceed the period of
availability of these funds.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer, or other counterparty to an investment, will not fulfill its
obligations. The City's policy for reducing its exposure to credit risk is to comply with the State's
Money Management Act. As of June 30, 2013, the Utah Public Treasurer's investment fund was
unrated.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's
investment in a single issuer. The City policy for reducing the risk of loss is to comply with the
Rules of the Money Management Council. The City's investment in the Utah Public Treasurer's
Investment Fund has no concentration of credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk Deposits

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City does not have a formal policy
of custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2013, $250,000 of the $822,028 balance of deposits was
exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Custodial Credit Risk Investments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure if the counterparty, the City will
not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in the possession of an outside party.
The City's investment in the Utah Public Treasurer Investment Fund has no custodial credit risk.
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10.

1.

12.

RESERVED FUND BALANCES

The City records restricted fund balances to indicate that a portion of the fund equity is legally
segregated for a specific future use. The following details the description and amounts of all
reserves used by the City:

Government Business
Actlvitles Actlvitles Total
Description
Special revenue, street lights $ 920 $ - $ 920
Special revenus, street signs 56,410 - 56,410
Special revenue, park impact fees 370,905 - 370,905
Special revenue, flood control 235,990 - 235,990
Special revenue, road impact fees 32 - 32
Mayor Crane special revenue fund 639 - 639
Debt service 369 369
Special revenue, public safety 32,934 - 32,934
Capital improvements fund 341,688 - 341,688
Towne center debt service 1,746,364 - 1,746,364
Towne center projects 2,500 - 2,500
General other restrictions 87,773 - -
Herriman Parkway 43,959 - 43,959
Bond reserve funds - 452 274 452,274
Water impact fees - 2,226,207 2,226,207
Totals $ 2,920,483 $ 2,678,481 $ 5,598,964
INTEREST EXPENSE

The proprietary fund incurred $846,076 in interest expense of which $846,076 was charged to
expense and $0 was capitalized.

RESTRICTED CASH

The City has restricted cash of $1,000,439 for impact fees, and $2,136,805 for debt service in the
governmental funds and $88,412 for other restrictions. The City has $2,226,207 for impact fees
and $4,845 432 for debt service in the enterprise fund.

COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The City has several subdivision projects that are in process at year end. The City has
experienced rapid growth over the last few years with several subdivisions planned after year
end. In preparing the financial statements the City has considered all subsequent events up to
December 16, 2013, the issue date of the financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, property damage, errors,
omissions, injuries, and natural disasters. The City has purchased comprehensive general
liability insurance and pays premiums for general insurance coverage, automobile liability, and
personal injury protection.
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13.

14.

185.

16.

TOTAL COLUMNS

Total columns on the governmental fund statements are captioned “Total" and are presented to
facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns does not represent consolidated information
since interfund eliminations have not been made.

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENTS AND SERVICE DISTRICTS

The City participates in the following services agreements:

South Jordan Special Service District

Member of the Salt Lake County Fire District
Salt Lake Valley Law Enforcement Service Area
Sait Lake County Animal Control

Salt Lake County Public Works

Jordan Valley Water Conservatory District

The City does not have total or final control over the fiscal or administrative activities of these

entities. Payments for services to these entities are included as expenditures of the City's
general fund.

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS ENTERPRISE FUND

The City obtained fixed assets as contributions of $4,436,584, vehicles lease with capital leases
of $25,332, and write off of bond cost of $432,596.

OBLIGATION UNDER CAPITAL LEASE

The City acquired certain enterprise assets financed with capital | The | d ts and
related capital lease obligations are accounted for in the enterprise fund. The lease agreements
contain fiscal funds in clauses which allow cancellation of leases if future funds for the leases are
not budgeted by the City Council.

Capital lease for equipment during the year ended June 30, 2013, was $49,580. The City has an
option of paying off the lease before the lease expires.

The following is a schedule of yearly future lease payments for the capital lease together with the

present rate of net minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2013, Capital leases for the
business funds are as follows:
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Year Ending June 30
June 30, 2014
June 30, 2015
June 30, 2016
June 30, 2017
Thereafter

Totals

Less amounts representing interest

Present value
Less current portion

Long term

The depreciation expense from these assets was $4,850 in 2013, The City has acquired certain
general fixed assets financed with capital leases. These leases have fiscal funding in clauses
which allow the cancellation of leases if future funds for the leases are not budgeted by the City

Council.

Capital lease for equipment in the governmental funds during the year ended June 30, 2013, was
$264,432. The City has an option of paying off the leases before the leases expire.

The following is a schedule of yearly future lease payments for the capital leases together with

Lease Payments

$ 16,709
8,691
8,691

34,091

(964)

33,127
(18,055)

$ 17,072

the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2013,

Year Ending June 30

June 30, 2014
June 30, 2015
June 30, 2016
June 30, 2017
Thereafter
Totals

Less amounts representing interest

Present value
Less current portion

Long term

17. NEWLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The GASB has issued the following statements that wilt apply to government reporting in future

years:

GASB 64 Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions —

an amendment of GASB Statement No. 53

Lease Payments

$ 66,820
16,141
16,141

99,102

!5,0792

94,023
!62,071!

3 31952

GASB 65 Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities

GASB 66 Technical Corrections — 2012 an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No.

62

GASB 6 7 Financial Reporting for Pension Plans — an amendment of GASB Statement No.
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18.

19.

20.

GASB 68 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 27

GASB 69 Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations

GASB 70 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees

GASB statements 67 and 68 will impact the financial statements for the unfunded pension liability
that will be reported on the financial statements. The liability is the difference between what is
actuarially required and what is contributed. The expenses will also show a new measure of the
pension expense. The amounts that will impact the financial statements have not been
determined for the current year. The other statements will not have a material effect on the
financial statements.

COMPLIANCE

The City has over spent the budget in the towne center special revenue fund.

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT AREAS

The City has a special improvement district. The improvement district is a business park and
residential subdivision that will house several businesses and homes. The construction project is
financed by special assessment bonds sold to bond-holders. The special assessments are levied
to owners who are assessed a portion based on a formula of land ownership. If the owners
default, the special assessments bondholders can seize the property. The City has the option to
purchase some of the assessment property. If the City purchases the property they will be
responsible for the assessment debt. The assessment revenue is recognized as income in the
government wide statements and deferred for the fund statements

FUND BALANCE
These financial statements include the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54 which redefined
how fund balances of the governmental funds are presented in the financial statements. Fund

balances are classified as follows:

Non-spendable - Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in a spendable form
or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of state or federal
laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors.

Committed - Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action
of the council.

Assigned - Amounts that are designated by the Council for a specific purpose but are not
spendable until specific conditions are met.

Unassigned - All amounts not included in the other spendable classifications.
The details of the fund balances are included in the governmental funds balance sheet and

statement of net position. Restricted funds are used first as appropriate. Assigned funds are
used when specific conditions are met. Decreases to the fund balance first, reduce unassigned
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fund balances. In the event that unassigned fund balance becomes zero, than assigned and
committed fund balances are used in that order.

The General Fund has unassigned fund balance in the amount of $1,483,744 at June 30, 2013

21. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The City has evaluated subsequent events through November 29, 2013, the date which the
financial statements were available to be issued.

22, PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMETNS

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued statement 64 that requires all bond costs
be expensed as incurred. The prior period adjustment is expensing bond costs that were
amortized in previous years. The change to expensing the bond costs rather than amortizing
them is a change in accounting principle.

23. SOCIAL SECURITY

The City has made an election not to participate in the Social Security System. As part of the
election not to participate, the City has amended tax forms and received refund payments
previously made to the system. The financial statements show a receivable from the Social
Security System and a liability to reimbursement employees for social security collected from the
Social Security System.
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HERRIMAN CITY

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Favorable
Actual Amounts  (Unfavorable)
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Variance with
Original Changes Final Basis Final Budget
REVENUES
General property taxes $ 505,000 $ (10,788) $ 494,212 $ 497,403 $ 3,191
Sales, use, and excise taxes 2,405,000 (67,537) 2,337,463 2,637,415 299,952
Franchise taxes 1,190,000 11,541 1,201,541 1,043,846 (157,695)
Licenses 41,000 7,243 48,243 49,737 1,484
Permits 2,709,457 1,094,262 3,803,719 3,446,303 (357,416)
Interest 16,800 13,007 29,807 29,774 (33)
Intergovernmental 861,250 2,188 863,438 797,757 (65,681)
Fines 160,000 9,300 169,300 167,179 (12,121}
Charges for services 484,670 29,192 513,862 776,275 262,413
Grants 2,000 - 2,000 88,454 86,454
Contributions - - - 661 661
Miscellaneous 241,050 223,167 464,217 59,380 (404,837)
Total revenues 8,616,227 1,311,575 9,927,802 9,584,184 (343,618)
EXPENDITURES
Administrative 1,478,494 180,888 1,669,382 1,502,331 167,051
Facilities 237,849 42,631 280,480 246,683 33,797
Information technology 671,013 65,680 736,693 734,240 2,453
Highways and streets 876,286 (3,335) 872,951 756,823 117,128
Stresl lighls 372,110 31,328 403,438 347,845 55,593
Storm drain maintenance 238,593 (8,313) 230,280 165,693 64,587
Strest signs 118,361 300 118,661 76,762 41,899
Cemetery 42,607 (4,230} 38,377 32,131 6,246
Public safety 225,156 82,808 307,964 299,738 8,226
Parks and recreation 1,466,719 127,460 1,694,179 1,329,239 264,940
Community affairs 842,561 32,099 874,660 832,497 42,163
Engineering 877,492 115,947 793,439 716,330 77,109
Fleet management 174,267 5,185 179,452 168,799 20,653
Human resources 251,354 7,203 258,557 243,350 15,207
Community development 737,829 85,403 833,232 752,936 80,296
Debt service 287,536 128,298 415,834 415,317 517
Total expenditures 8,698,227 908,352 9,607,579 8,609,714 997,865
expenditures
(usage of fund balance) (82,000) 402,223 320,223 974,470 654,247
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Lease proceeds 62,000 {82,000) - 47,334 -
Transfers out - - - (841,284) (841,284)
Transfers in - = = - -
Total other financing sources 82,000 (82,000} - (793,850) (841,284}
Net change in fund balance - 320,223 320,223 180,520 (187,037)
FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2012 1,486,741 1,486,741 1,486,741 1,486,741 -
FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2013 $ 1,486,741 $ 1,806,964 $ 1,806,964 $ 1,667,261 $ (187,037)
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HERRIMAN CITY

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Public Safety Special Revenue Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts (Unfavorable)
Budgetary Variance with
Orlginal Budget changes Final Basis Final Budget
REVENUES
Charges for services $ - $ - $ - $ 7.608 $ 7.608
Total revenues - - - 7,608 7,608
EXPENDITURES
Public Safety 86,848 86,848 66,420 20,428
Total expenditures - 86,848 86,848 66,420 20,428
Excess of revenues over expenditures
(usage of fund balance) - (86,848) (86,848) (58,812) 28,036
OTHER FINANCES SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - - -
Total other financing sources - - - - -
Net change in fund balance - (86,848) (86,848) (58,812) 28,036
FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2012 91,746 91,746 91,746 91,746 -
FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2013 $ 91,746 $ 4,898 $ 4,898 $ 32,934 $ 28,036
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HERRIMAN CITY

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Towne Center Special Revenue Fund

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES
Impact fees
Contributions
Charges for services
Other
Interest
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital oullay
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
(usage of fund balance)

OTHER FINANCES SOURCES (USES)
Bond Proceeds
Transfers out
Total olher financing sources
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2012

FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2013

Favorable
Budgeted A Actual A {Unfavorable)
Budgetary Varlance with
Origlnal Budget chang Final Basis Final Budget
$ - $ - $ - $ 83,641 $ 83,641
- - - 1,375,157 1,375,157
44,000 2,861,463 2,905,463 536,409 (2,369,054)
- - - 83,971 -
- - - 13,852 13,852
44,000 2,861,463 2,905,463 2,093,030 (896,404)
44,000 1,157,852 1,201,852 383,754 818,088
- 1,157,493 1,157,493 1,675,000 (517,507)
- 790,000 780,000 729,211 60,789
44,000 3,105,345 3,149,345 2,787,965 361,380
- (243,882) (243,882) (694,835) (535,024)
= (243,882) (243,882) (618,092) (535,024)
2,367,956 2,367,956 2,367,956 2,367,956 -
$ 2,367,956 $§ 2124074 $ 2124074 $ 1748864 $ (535,024)
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HERRIMAN CITY

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2013

v

v

i

J / / 14 v
Parks Flood Control Roads Street Signs  Street Lights Mayor Crane Special Speclal
Speclal Speclal Capital Speclal Special Speclal Speclal Revenue Revenue Debt
Revenue Revenue Improvements Revenue Revenue Revenus Revenue Parkway Public Safety Service Totals
ASSETS
Cash, unrestricted $ - - $ 35315 168,011 $ - - $ - $ - $ - 369 $ 53,695
Cash, restricted 503,376 270,445 341,689 43,879 57,824 1,920 639 46,252 32,995 - 1,388,019
Total assets § 593376 § 270445 § 377,004 61890 § 57824 § 1920 & 639 § 48,252 $ 32,995 369§ 1442714
e L
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 222471 $ 34,455 $ 352316 61,858 $ 1414 $ 1,000 $ - $ 2293 $ 61 - $ 3568868
Total liabilitles 222,471 34,455 35,316 61,858 1,414 1,000 = 2,293 61 = 358,868
Fund balances
Asslgned - - -
Restricted bond sinking fund . - 41,668 - - - - - - 341,668
Restricted 370,905 235,890 - 32 56,410 920 639 43,959 32,934 369 742,158
Tolal fund balance 370,905 235990 341,688 32 56,410 920 839 43,950 32,934 369 1,083,846
Tolal liabilities and fund balance $ 593376 $ 270,445 $ 377,004 61,890 § 57,6824 $ 1,920 3 639 $ 46,252 $ 32,995 369 $ 1,442714
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HERRIMAN CITY

Combini of R

Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

, Expenditures, and Changes in

REVENUES
Impact fees
Interest
Charges for sarvices
Sale of assels
Other revenue
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capilal outiay
Public safety
Debl service
Principal
Interest
Tolal expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sourcas (uses)

Havwruns and othed sies sver
expenditures and othar uses

FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2012

FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2013

Parks Flood Control Roads Street Signs Streat Lights Mayor Crane Spaclat Bpeclal
Speclal Speclal Capltal Speclal Speclal Bpaclal Speclal Revenue Revenue Debt
Revenue Revenue Improvements Revenue Revenue Revenua Revenue Parkway Public Sataty Service Totals
] 850,179 $ 314,629 $ - $ 763,257 3 - 5 - 5 - 4] - 3 - 3 . 5 1,928,265
377 2,415 - 1,003 - - 4 - . 127 3,926
2,205 - 18,924 . 80,958 167,945 - - 7.608 . 257,638
- - > = - - - 1,555,780 N N 1,536,780
852,761 317,244 18,924 764,260 60,956 167,945 4 . __ 1536780 7.608 127 3,726,609
888,512 137,383 711,845 B3T.209 23,874 280,786 - 1,552,526 . 4,431,935
. . . - - . . - 66,420 . 66,420
- - - - 2188 R, —— e ——. Se—— : 281953
888,512 137,383 711,645 1,069,162 23,874 280,786 - 1,552,526 66,420 - 4,730,308
(35,751 178,861 692,721 {304,902 37,082 {112,841} 4 (15,746 (58,812} 127 {1,003,699)
- - 765,441 B - 63,000 - - . . 828,441
s - E (63.000) B = - - . . (63,000}
- - 765,441 (63,000) - 83,000 - - = - 765441
{35.751) 179,861 72,720 (367,902) 37,082 {49,841) 4 {15,746) (58,812) 127 (238,258)
408,656 56,129 268,968 367,934 19,328 50,761 835 59,705 91,746 242 1,322,104
3 370,905 $ 235,990 / $ 341,688 / 5 32 ( $ 56,410 / $ 920 ( 3 639 / 5 43,859 $ 32934 $ 3:9=/$ 1,083,848
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HERRIMAN CITY

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Parks Speclal Revenue Fund
Flscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES
Impact fees
Interest
Charges for services
Tolat revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outiay
Total expenditures
Excess revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Transfers out

Revenue and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses

FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2012

FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2013

Favorable

Budgeted A Actual A {unf: )

Budgetary Variance with

Origlnal Chang Final Basls Final Budget
$ 639,450 - $ 1,218,500 $ 850,179 $ (369,321)
500 . 500 ar7 (123)

- - - 2,205 2,205

639,950 - 1,220,000 852,761 (367,239)
270,000 703,239 973,239 888,512 84,727
270,000 703,239 973,239 888,512 84,727
368,950 (123,189) 246,761 (35,751) (262,512)
369,950 (123,189) 246,761 (35,751) (282,512)
406,656 406,656 406,656 406,656 -

$ 776,608 283,467 $ 653417 $ 370,905 $ (282,512
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HERRIMAN CITY

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Flood Control Special Revenue Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts ({unfavorable)
Budgetary Variance with
Original Budget Changes Final Basis Final Budget
REVENUES
Impact fess $ 85,000 $ 219,931 $ 304,931 $ 314,829 $ 9,898
Interest 125 - 125 2,415 2,290
Total revenues 85,125 219,931 305,056 317,244 12,188
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 64,412 105,812 170,224 137,383 32,841
Total sxpenditures 64,412 105,812 170,224 137,383 32,841
Excess revenues over expenditures 20,713 114,119 134,832 179,861 45,029
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out - = - - -
Revenue and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses 20,713 114,119 134,832 179,861 45,029
FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2012 56,129 56,129 56,129 56,129 -
FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2013 $ 76,842 $ 170,248 $ 190,961 $ 235,990 $ 45,029
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HERRIMAN CITY

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Herriman Parkway Special Revenue Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES
Interest
Other
Tolal revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expendilures
(usage of fund balance)

Net change in fund balance
FUND BALANCE, JuLY 1,2012

FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30,2013

Favorable
Actual Amounts (Unfavo rable)
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Vartance with
Ortiginal Changes Final Basis Final Budget
—rginal —=__ __ Final___ N3l Budget
] - $ - 8 - § - 5 -
44,000 - 44,000 1.536,780 1.492,780
44,000 - 44,000 1.538,780 1.482,780
—_— 1536780 — 148,780
44,000 - 44,000 1,652,526 (1 .508,526)
44,000 - 44,000 1,552,526 ( 1,508,526!
. - - (15,746) (15,746)
—_—— - —_— ___ (15746) —_— 12,746)
= 5 - (15,746) (15,746)
59,705 59,705 59,705 59,705 -
$ 59,705 $ 59,705 $ 59,705 $ 43,959 $ (15,746)
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HERRIMAN CITY

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Roads Special Revenue Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts  (Unfavorable)
Budgetary Varlance with
Original Budget Chang Final Basis Final Budget
REVENUES
Interest $ 525 $ 431 $ 956 $ 1,003 $ 47
Charges for services - - - - .
Impact fees 609,000 175,799 784,799 763,257 (21,542)
Total revenuss 609,525 176,230 785,755 764,260 (21,495)
Expenditures
Capital outlay 511,000 391,928 902,928 837,209 65,719
Debt service
Intarest - 250,000 250,000 231,953 18,047
Total expenditures 511,000 641,928 1,162,928 1,069,162 83,766
Excess of revenues over expenditures 98,525 {465,698) (367,173) (304,902) (105,261)
Transfers out - - - (63,000) -
Net change in fund balance 98,525 (465,698) (367,173) (367,902) (105,261)
FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2012 367,934 367,934 367,934 367,934 -
FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2013 $ 466,459 $§ (97,764) 8 761 $ 32 $ (105261)
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HERRIMAN CITY

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Street Signs Special Revenue Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES
Charges for services
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expendilures
(usage of fund balance)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2012

FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2013

Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts  (Unfavorable)
Budgetary Variance with
Original Budget changes Flnal Basis Final Budget
$ 17,500 $ 39,557 $ 57,057 $ 60,956 $ 3,899
17,500 39,557 57,057 60,956 3,899
14,500 42,557 57,057 23,874 33,183
14,500 42,557 57,057 23,874 33,183
3,000 (3,000) - 37,082 37,082
3,000 (3,000) . 37,082 37,082
19,328 19,328 19,325 19,328 3
$ 22,328 $ 16,328 $ 19,325 $ 56410 ~-§% 37,085
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HERRIMAN CITY

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Street Lights Special Revenue Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Favorable
Budgeted A Actual A {Unfavorable)
Budgetary Varlance with
Original Budget changes Final Basis Final Budget
REVENUES
Charges for services $ 75,000 $ 206,433 $ 281,433 $ 167,945 $ (113,488)
Interest - - - N N
Tolal revenues 75,000 206,433 281,433 167,945 (113,488)
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 64,300 217,133 281,433 280,786 647
Total expenditures 64,300 217,133 281,433 280,786 647
Excess of revenues over expendilures
(usage of fund balance) 10,700 (10,700) - (112,841) (112,841)
OTHER FINANCES SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - - 63,000 63,000
Total other financing sources - - - 63,000 63,000
Net change in fund balance 10,700 (10,700) - (49,841) (49,841)
FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2012 50,761 50,761 50,761 50,761 -
FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2013 $ 61,461 $ 40,061 $ 50,761 $ 920 $  (49,841)

50



HERRIMAN CITY

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Debt Service Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES
Interest
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Debt service
General Government
Interest
Total expenditures

Excess revenues over expendilures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out

Transfers in

Revenue and other sources over {(under)
expenditures and other uses

FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2012

FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2013

Actual A

Original

Final

Budgetary
Basls

Favorable
(unfavorable)
Varlance with
Final Budget

$ 127

$ 127

127

127

127

127

242

127

242

Bud dA
Budget Changes
$ .
$ -

$ 369

$ 369
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HERRIMAN CITY

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Capital Improvement Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES
Charges for services
Intergovernmental
Contributions
Interest income
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expendilures
(usage of fund balance)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bond proceeds
Transfers out
Transfers in
Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balance
FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2012

FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2013

Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts  ({Unfavorable)
Budgetary Varlance with
Original Budget Changes Final Basis Final Budget
$ - $ - $ - $ 18,924 $ 18,924
- 161 161 - (181)
- 178,382 178,382 - (178,382)
- 178,543 178,543 18,924 (159,619)
- 1,022,626 1,022,626 711,645 310,981
- 1,022,626 1,022 626 711,645 310,981
- (844,083) (844,083) (692,721) 151,362
- 736,000 736,000 765,441 29 441
- 736,000 736,000 765,441 28,441
- (108,083) (108,083) 72,720 180,803
268,968 268,968 268,968 268,968 -
$ 268,968 $ 160,885 $ 160,885 $ 341,688 $ 180,803
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HERRIMAN CITY

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Mayor Crane Special Revenue Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Amounts

Favorable
{Unfavorable)

Budgetary Variance with
Orlginal Budget Chang Final Basls Final Budget
REVENUES
Impact fees $ - $ = $ = $ - $ s
Interest 5 - 5 4 ()]
Total revenues 5 - 5 4 (1)
EXPENDITURES
Cabpital outlay - . - . -
Total expenditures - E = = =
Excess of revenues over expenditures
(usage of fund balance) 5. - 5 4 (1)
Net change In fund balance 5 - 5 4 (1)
FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2012 635 635 635 635 -
FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2013 $ 640 $ 635 $ 640 $ 639 $ (1)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND O'THER MA'TTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCY WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and City Council
Herriman City
Herriman, UT

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally aceepted in the United States of
American and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goversment Auditing Stemelards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
uclivitics, cach major fund, and the aggregate remaining find information of the Herriman City, as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes 1o the financial statements, which collectively

comprise Herriman City's basic financial statements, and have issued our veport thereon dated December
12,2013,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Herriman City's internal
control over linanciul reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriste in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing onr opinions on the financial stutements, but not for the
purpose of exprossing an opinion on the effectiveness of Herriman City's internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectivencss of Herriman City's internal control,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control dogs not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
tletect und correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is deficiency, or a combination
of deficieneies, in internal control, such that fhere is a reasonable possibility that a material misstalement
ol the entily’s financial statements will not he prevented, or deteeted and corrected on a timely basis, A
significant deficiency is u deficiency, or a combination of deficiencics, in intetnal control that is loss
scvere that n material weakness, yet important enongh to mierit attention by those charged with
govemanee.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose deseribed in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control thut might be material
weakuesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or signilicant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be materinl weaknesses, However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
linancial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, ns defined above,

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Heniman City's financial statements are free
from materinl misstatement, we performed tests of its compliunce with certain provigions of laws,
regulations, contrets, and geant agreements, noncompliance with which could have & direet and muterial
effect on the determination of financinl statement amounts, However, providing an opinion on compliance
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with those provisions was not an objective ol our audit, and uccordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
tequited lo be reported under Govermment Auditing Standards.

Herriman City's Response to Iindings

Herriman City's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. Herrimnn City's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we eXpress no opinion on il,

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that tosting, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
cortrof or on compliance. This report in an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standardy in considering the entity’s internal control and complisnee, Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Gilbert & Stewart

GILBERT & STEWART
Certified Public Accountants
December 12,2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT ON COMPLIANCE,
AND ON INTERNAT, CONTROLS OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATE OF UTAH LEGAL COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE

Honorable Mayor and City Council
Herriman City
Herriman, UT

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

We have andited Herriman City's complinnce with general and major state program compliance requirements
described in the State of Ulah Legal Compliance Audit Guide for the year ended June 30, 2013,

The general compliance requirements applicable to the City are identified as follows:

Cash Management

Budgetary Compliance

If'und Balance

Utah Retirement System Compliance
Inpact Fees

Government Records Access Manageinent Act
Conflicts of Interest

Nepotism

Utah Public Finance Website

Open & Public Mectings Act

B & C Road Money

The City received the following major assistance programs from the State of Utah during the year ended
June 30, 2013:

B & C Road Moncy
Management's Responsibility
Compliance with the requirements referred to above is the responsibility of the City*s management.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is (o express un opinion on compliance with those requirements based on our audit,
We conducled our audit of compliance in accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; Ihe standnrds applicable (o finuncial audits contained in Government Awditing
Standardy, issucd by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State af Utah legal
Compliance Audit Guidle. Thosc standards and the Stare of Utah Legal Compliance Audit Guide require

that we plun and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a material effeet on the City and its major

JAMES E. STEWART, Cia,
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programs occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides n rensonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination ol the City's compliance with those requirements.

Opinion

In our opinion, Hetriman City complied, in all material respects, with the general compliance requirements
identified above and the compliance requirements that are applicable o each of its major state programs for
the year ended June 30, 2013,

REPORT OF INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

Management of the City is responsible for estublishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the compliance requirements veferred to above. In planning and perfonming our audit,
we considered the City's internal control aver compliance to determing the auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of cxXpressing an opinion on
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance,

A deficiency in internal control over campliance cxists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevenl,
or deteet and eorrect, noncompliance on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliemce is a deliciency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with o compliance requirement will nof be
prevented, or deteeled and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose deseribed in the first
paragraph of this seetion and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses in internal control over complinnee. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
wenknesses, as defined nbove. However, materinl weaknesses may exist that have not been identified,

Putpose of Report

‘The purpose of this report is solely ta describe the scope of our testing of internnl control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
cautrol or on cotnpliance. Thig report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose,

Gilbert & Stewart
GILBERT & STEWART
Certified Public Accowntants
Decemiber 12, 2013



